
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 8 201~ H!tY - 7 p11 J: J:; 

1595 WYNKOOP STREET 
DENVER, CO 80202-1129 

Phone 800-227-8917 
http://www .cpa.gov/region08 

DOCKET NO.: CAA-08-2013-0016 

IN THE MA ITER OF: 

COLORADO INTERSTATE GAS 
COMPANY, LLC. 

RESPONDENT 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

FINAL ORDER 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22. 13(b) and 22.18, of EPA's Consolidated Rules of Practice, the 

Consent Agreement resolving this matter is hereby approved and incorporated by reference into 

this Final Order. The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the 

Consent Agreement, effective immediately upon receipt by Respondent of this Consent 

Agreement and Final Order. 

SO ORDERED THIS 1]1:1? DAY OF _._fh__.:;;__.otx:Cl&f-~,..._---' 2014. 

Elyana R. n 
Regional Judicial Officer 



UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY '-~AY -I • .,. 10: 28 

REGION 8 2Ul'~ n tm 

Docket No. CAA-08-2013-0016 -·A f.ECION Vlll 
H, :· ' i~l ~ r1 FRK 

IN THE MATTER OF: 

COLORADO INTERSTATE GAS 
COMPANY, L.L.C. 

Rawlins Compressor Station 
3401 Wagon Circle Road 
Rawlins, WY 82301 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Respondent. ) 

COMBINED COMPLAINT 
AND CONSENT AGREEMENT 

Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8 (the EPA or 
Complainant), and Respondent, Colorado Interstate Gas Company, L.L.C. (CIG), by their 
undersigned representatives, hereby consent and agree as follows: 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

I. This Combined Complaint and Consent Agreement (Agreement) is entered into 
by EPA and CIG (individually, a "Party" and, collectively, as the "Parties") to 
settle alleged violations of the federal Clean Air Act (Act), 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401-
7671, specifically 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart HH (National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants From Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities). 

2. This matter is subject to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the 
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, and the Revocation, Termination 
or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. part 22. This 
Agreement contains all terms of the settlement agreed to by the Parties. It is 
entered into by the Parties for the purpose of simultaneously commencing and 
concluding this matter, as authorized by 40 C.F.R. §22.13(b), and is executed 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22.18(b)(2) and (3) ofthe Consolidated Rules. It also 
supersedes any prior agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, 
between the Parties with respect to the violations alleged herein. 

3. The EPA Administrator and the United States Attorney General have jointly 
determined that this matter is appropriate for an administrative penalty 
assessment, as authorized by section 113(d)(l) ofthe Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§7413( d)(l ). Accordingly, the EPA has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 
section 113( d)( 1 )(B) and section 113( d)(2)(B) of the Act. 
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4. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this Agreement, but neither 
admits nor denies the specific factual allegations or legal conclusions made by 
the Complainant herein. 

5. Complainant asserts that settlement of this matter is in the public interest, and 
Complainant and Respondent acknowledge that entry of a final order approving 
this Agreement, in full, without further litigation and without adjudication of 
any issue of fact or law is the most appropriate means of resolving this matter. 
Without admitting wrongdoing, Respondent waives its rights to contest the 
allegations in the Complaint and to appeal a final order issued by the Regional 
Judicial Officer approving this Consent Agreement in full. 

6. This Agreement, upon incorporation into a final order, applies to and is binding 
upon the EPA, the Respondent, and Respondent's officers, directors, 
employees, agents, successors, and assigns. Any change in ownership or 
corporate status of Respondent including, but not limited to, any transfer of 
assets or real or personal property shall not alter Respondent's responsibilities 
under this Agreement. 

7. Respondent CIG is a Delaware limited liability corporation, with its principal 
place of business located in Colorado, where it is registered and in good 
standing with the Colorado Secretary of State as a Colorado foreign corporation. 
Respondent is therefore a "person" as defined in §7602(e) ofthc Act. 

8. Respondent owns and operates the Rawlins Natural Gas Compressor Station 
(the Facility), which is located at3401 Wagon Circle Road, Rawlins, Wyoming, 
8230 I. 

9. The Complainant issued an Administrative Order on September 29, 2011 to 
CIG's corporate parent at the time, El Paso Corporation. See Docket No. CAA-
08-2011-0029. This Administrative Order required El Paso Corporation to use 
certain test methods with respect to Leak Detection and Repair requirements at 
the Facility. 

10. The Complainant acknowledges the Respondent's compliance with the Final 
Order previously issued in this matter dated September 30, 2013 and its more 
recent cooperation in seeking a resolution to this matter, as well as the 
Respondent's commitment to performing portions of an 'enhanced' LDAR 
program, as set out in greater detail below. 

II. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS 

11. The Complainant alleges the Respondent violated the Act and regulations 
authorized by the Act. Specifically, Congress enacted section 112 of the Act, 
which requires the EPA to regulate sources of hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) 
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and establish National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, 
(NESIIAI's). 42 U.S.C. § 7412. In partial fulfillment of this statutory duty. the 
EPA designated Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities as a category subject 
to the requirements of Section 112 of the Act. The EPA is required by Section 
ll2(c)(l) of the Act to publish a list of all categories and subcategories of major 
sources and area sources ofi-IAPs. The EPA met this requirement on June 17, 
1999, when it promulgated 40 C.P.R. Part 63, Subpart HII, "National Emissions 
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants from Oil and Natural Gas Production 
Facilities." 64 Fed. Reg. 32628. Specifically, 40 C.F.R. Part 63 Subpart HH 
applies to owners and/or operators of oil and natural gas production plants. 40 
C.F.R. § 63.760(a). The Facility is a plant subject to Subpart l!H and 
Respondent owns and operates the Facility. 

12. The specific regulations the Complainant alleges the Respondent violated at the 
Facility arc as follows: 

a. On August 24,2011, inspectors from the EPA Region 8 office 
conducted an inspection at the Facility to determine Respondent's 
compliance with LDAR requirements. During this inspection, the EPA 
determined that the Respondent failed to properly use the required leak 
detection method (40 C.F.R. 60, Appendix A, Method 21, Section 
8.3.1); and 

b. The Respondent's historic leak rate for subject components had been 
reported by the Respondent at a lower rate than EPA observed during 
the inspection, in violation of40 C.F.R. Section 61.245(b)(l). 

III. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT 

13. All the violations alleged in paragraph 12 above have been corrected. As a 
condition of settlement, Respondent, without admitting wrongdoing, shall 
comply with the non-penalty provisions below in paragraphs 14-16. In 
consideration for Respondent pcrfonning these non-penalty obligations, the 
EPA shall comply with the Covenant Not to Sue in paragraph 22 below. In 
addition, in accordance with section 113(d)(2)(B) of the Act, the EPA has 
compromised the maximum civil penalty of$37,500 per day per violation 
authorized in this matter, applying the factors set forth in section 113( c) of the 
Act and the 1991 Clean Air Act Civil Penalty Policy, including Respondent's 
significant cooperation in agreeing to perform the non-penalty obligations in 
paragraphs 14-16 bela\\'. 

14. The Respondent shall maintain the contract it entered into with Trihydro 
Corporation, dated October 29, 2012, and identified by Job Number 09K-001-
002 (enclosed as Attachment A). This contract involves the perfonnancc of 
activities to verify the Respondent is in compliance with LDAR requirements, 
as referenced in Paragraphs 9, 11 and 12 above. Further, the Respondent shall 
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maintain the contract identified above for a period of three years from October 
29, 2012, or enter into an equivalent contract with a qualified operator covering 
the period from the date of the Final Order issued in this matter and terminating 
no earlier than three years after October 29, 2012. 

15. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 

16. The Respondent shall submit quarterly progress reports, commencing within 90 
days of the date the Final Order is issued in this matter. The purpose of such 
reports is to provide the status of Respondent's efforts to comply with the terms 
of settlement in this Agreement. Respondent may stop submitting such reports 
upon the expiration of the time period referenced in the above Paragraph 14. 
Submissions of reports required by this Paragraph 16, shall be addressed to: 

Air & Toxics Technical Enforcement Program Director 
U.S. EPA Region 8 (Mail Code 8ENF-AT) 
1595 Wynkoop St. 
Denver, CO 80202-1129 

The Certification of Truth, Accuracy & Completeness shall read: 

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am 
familiar with the infonnation in the enclosed documents, 
including all attachments. Based on my personal inquiry of 
those individuals with primary responsibility for obtaining 
the information, I certify that the statements and 
information are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 
true and complete. I am aware that there are significant 
penalties for knowingly submitting false statements and 
information, including the possibility of fines or 
imprisonment pursuant to section 113(c)(2) of the Act, and 
18U.S.C. §§ 1001,1341 and 1505. 

17. The EPA has analyzed the facts and circumstances in this matter with the statutory 
factors described in scctionll3(d)(l)(B) of the Act. The EPA has dctcnnined that 
an appropriate civil penalty to resolve this matter is THIRTY SEVEN 
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($37,500,00). In light of the unusual 
procedural history of this matter (see Environmental Appeal Board rulings in 
Appeal Nos. 13-03, 13-04 and 13-05); the fact that Respondent has paid the sum of 
$37,500 to the U.S. Treasury in connection with the Final Order issued in Docket 
No. CAJ\-08-2013-0016; and conducted the comprehensive review of the Facility 
provided therein to verify that all components required to comply with subpart HI-I 
were correctly identilled and properly monitored, no further penalty payment is 
owed to the United States. Respondent acknowledges that any penalty assessed with 
respect to the herein-alleged violations shall never be claimed as a federal or other 
tax deduction or credit. 
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18. Failure by Respondent to comply with any of the tetms of this Agreement shall 
constitute a breach of the Agreement and may result in referral of the matter to the 
United States Department of Justice for enforcement of this Agreement and for such 
other relief as may be appropriate. 

19. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver by the EPA or any other 
federal entity of its authority to seck costs or any appropriate penalty associated 
with any collection action instituted as a result of Respondent's failure to perform 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

20. Each undersigned representative of a Party to this Agreement certifies that he or she 
is fully authorized by the Party represented to bind the Party to the tcnns and 
conditions of this Agreement and to execute and legally bind that Party to this 
Agreement. Each Party's obligations under this Agreement constitutes sufficient 
consideration for the other Party's obligations under the Agreement. 

21. The Parties shall submit this Agreement to the Regional Judicial Officer, with a 
request that it be incorporated (in full) into a final order. 

22. This Agreement, upon incorporation (in full) into a final order by the Regional 
Judicial Officer and full satisfaction by the Parties, shall be a complete, full and 
final settlement of the United States' civil penalty claims against Respondent for the 
specific violations alleged in this Agreement. In addition, in exchange for the 
Respondent's promise to fulfill the conditions contained in paragraphs 14-16 above, 
the EPA shall not issue any administrative order to sue Respondent for injunctive or 
other equitable relief for the specific violations alleged in this matter, but such 
covenant terminates if Respondent fails to timely and satisfactorily complete every 
condition stated in paragraphs 14-16 above; provided, however, that such covenant 
shall not tcm1inatc until and unless Complainant first provides written notice to 
Respondent of any failure to perform any such condition and provides Respondent a 
reasonable opportunity to cure such failure, to demonstrate that performance was 
achieved or that no such performance is necessary, or to explain circumstances 
associated with such condition. Should the covenant terminate, Complainant may 
compel Respondent to perform any or all of those conditions and seck other relief in 
a civil action pursuant to the Clean Air Act, pursuant to contract law, or both. In 
addition, the Parties acknowledge that the covenant not to sue described above 
constitutes sufficient consideration for Respondent's obligations in Paragraphs 14-
16 above. 

23. By signing this Consent Agreement, Respondent certifies that the information it has 
supplied conceming this matter was, at the time of submission, truthful. accurate, 
and complete for each such submission, response, and statement. Respondent 
realizes that there arc significant penalties for submitting false or misleading 
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infonnation, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment for knowing 
submission of such inJbrmation, under 18 U.S.C. § 1001. 

24. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 

25. The substantive terms, conditions, and compliance requirements of this Agreement 
may not be modified or amended except upon the written agreement of the Parties, 
and incorporation in a revised final order by a Regional .Judicial Officer. 

26. Each Party shall bear its own costs and attorneys fees in cormection with all issues 
associated with this Agreement. 

27. Respondent remains obligated to comply with all requirements of the Act and its 
implementing regulations. 

28. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 
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Date: 03/fffl 20/'f 
' 

Date: ,_;- J I- I'--/ -

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 8, 
Office of Enforcement, Compliance, and 

Environmental Justice 

COMPLAINANT. 

By ccr;ldl,_i a. ~ 
WAndrew M. Gaydosh 
0 Assistant Regional Administrator 

Office of Enforcement, Compliance and 
Environmental Justice 

By: 

COLORADO INTERSTATE GAS COMPANY, 
L.L.C. 

RESPONDENT. 

PRINTED NAME: Mark A. Kissel 

TITLE: President 



Trihydro Corporation 
ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 

Date: October 29, 2012 Job No.: 09K-OD1-002 

Contract No.: 12-106CPS 

ConsultantJContractor: Trihydro Corporation Telephone: 307-745-7474 

(hereinafter "Trihydro'') 1252 Commerce Drive Facs!mllo: 307-745-8214 

laramie, WY 82070 

CLIENT PROJECT SITE 

Name: Colorado Interstate Gas Company Name: El Paso Rawlins Statlon 

Address: PO Box 307 Address: 

City, State, Zip; Rawlins, WY 82334 City, State: Rawf!ns, WY 

Telephone: 307-324-5849 Contact: TommyHamm 

Fax: 307 321-Q943 Email: tommy hamm@klndermorgan.com 

Project Name: Leak Detection and Repair (lDAR) Monitoring and Management 

Scope of Services: (Describe below andfor Reference Attachments): Trihydro will provide LDAR routlne monthly 

and quarterly inspections, re-monltorlng of leaking components, quality assurance/quality control metrlcs, and semiannual 

reporting at the Rawlins NGL Plant and Compressor Station in Sinclair, Wyoming. Work to be performed in sccordance with 

the attached Cost Estimate dated August 17,2012. 

Commencement Date: January 01, 2013 Completion Date: December 31, 2013 

Additional Requirements (I.e. Insurance): - -
Estimated Cost: $16,388.00 Schedule of Charges/Quote Attached: No X Yes - --
Payment Terms {i.e., LS, T&M, NTE, Retainer, Progress}: Time and materials 

Site!Project Specific Health/Safety Considerations (Information Provided by Client): Any additional requirements 

wl!l be provided by the client, prior to commencing work. 

Client Contact: Tommy Hamm Trihydro Project Manager: Bon Levin 

In Witness Whereof the Parties Enter into this Contract to Provide Services, to include the Terms and Condltlons set out 
Attached or on the Sack hereof and by this Reference Incorporated herein. The Terms and Conditions attached and/or on 
the back are a part of this Contract. 

CLIENT TRIHYDRO CORPORATION 

Name: ~t-J \J\EU,E)-) Namo: Deby L. Forry, Esq. 

Title: 'i:-1-\ S furaM.~ Title: Vice President of Risk M_jmagemenl 

Signature: ),..---.:...-----::> ~ Signature: !il)A}JAJ ~~AM./-' 
Date: '2- 'Aft'?" - Date: October 29..2Q.11 u 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
TR!HYDRO CORPORATION 

CONTRACT TO PROVIPF. SIORVICES 

Contract No. 12-106CPS 

1. TIME PERIOO FOR Pt:RI'DRMANCE; Trlhydro wl!l 
commonco SaJ\IIcos as spelllfled In the Scope of SeJ\Itces, and 
will complato such Services In a diligent manner, Trlhydro wH! 
not be msporl!lllllo for delws caused by factors beyond 
Tril1ydro's corllml whloh could not readily have Wen foreseen 
when this Authorlwllon ws received. 

2, ADDITIONAl,. SERVICES: Trihydro will perform Addll!cnal 
Services not ~:pec:(led In tile Scope of Services, provided 
Trilwdro and CLIENT have agrood lo tho scopo and foe for 
such sel'lices in wrttlng. The written ~greement for additional 
sarvlnes shall consUtute a Change Order. Th\n Agreement onO 
gonoral provisions shall be ln<::orpom!od In all Change Orders. 
In \he oven! the CLIENT requests addlllonol work and those 
services am porformod by Trlhydro wllhoul a written Chango 
Order, CLIENT agrees kl provide written no!lne within twenty 
(20) days of receiving an Invoice for the additional work or a 
progress reporl describing tho eddlllonal saiVk:es stalin{! that 
the work Is ~ot authorizEd and that the soJ\IIcos will not be pa!d 
for; If CLIENT does not dispute the charges tho~e charges w\11 
be considered authorized and the CUI:NT agraes to pay lor 
such ~dditlonal seiVIces In <tccordanCII Wltll lila terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, Any SaJ\IIcca performed w\tl be 
done ~I Trihydro's current fee sohodu!e at the lime tho servlcos 
are pertormcd. 

3. TIME OF PAYMI:NTS Trlhydro wt:l subn~l monthly Invoices 
for completed Services. CLIENT shall timely IIWiaw soan 
Invoices and shall notify Trlhydro w~hin 10 days of any dispUted 
amounts CUJ:NT agroes to pay all undisputed amounts vAthln 
30 days from dato of lnvok:e. Any paymenl not re<:elvod by 
TMhydro within said 30 days sllall be con&klernd de;lnquent and 
the amounts dua Trlhydro shall acorue a lata ch<uge of 1 112% 
p~r month for each month from date of Invoice. In 1M •wont of 
any payment due Trlhydro under the terms of this AUihorizaUon 
Is delinquMt, itlhydro may suspend all seiVICes until all 
delinquent payments h9Va boon received by CLIENT. 

4. PAYMENTS TO SUPP[,IERS: Trihydro shall promptly pay ell 
materials suppliers and subcontractors wh!ch h~ve either 
supplied materials or sof\lloas for work porlormad under the 
Agreement and any Change Order w:lhln 10 days after receipt 
of paymonl from CLIENT, and sha:l, If requlrod, furnish CLIENT 
with names of any ar.d all suppliers or contrectors used by 
Trlhydro In ~rformlng the Work and s11all furnish CLIENT 
sat'sfactory evidence of seltlomont Including lien waivers for 
any and all matorlals supplied to Trihydro under the Agraament 
or any Change Order b6fore paymenl therefore shall be duo 
and payabla to Trlhydro. 

5. TAXES: l'oes quoted do not Include any state, fedellll or local 
appllcablo taxes, and will be the rosponslblllty of the CLIENT. 

6. §TANDAR~FORMANCI;: Trlhydro shall perform Its 
se!VIces In accordanco with generally acc~plod englnaerlng 
end consulting slandards In affect at tho Ume services were 
performed. Trlhydro makes no other warranty, expresn or 
Implied. 

7. filiY!RONMt;!f_!l\L REPORTS. PLANS AND 
~S_§fLSJl_M_§_NTS: Trlhydro reports Oncludlng Phase and II 
lnvestlgatlo~ Ropcrts) plans, and assessments may prosont 
professional oplnl011s and findings of a scientific and technical 
nature. While attempts have been made to relate the data nnd 
Ondlngs to applicable environmental laws and re9ulations, tho 
rapor\ shall not be conslrued to offer legal opinion or 
rnprosonlaUons as lo the requirements of, or compliance with 
envlronmenl~l laws, ru:es, regulations or pollclos of fttderal, 
stale or local government agencies. 

e. !NDEPENDf::NT CONIRACTOR: Trlhydro ahall perform Its 
work as ao Independent contrec\or and shall have responsibility 
fer and control over tho delail~ and means of perlormanc{! al 
lhe soJ\IIcas performed hereunder. T!lhydro Is not the agent of 
CUENT unless, and to the extent, expressly so des!gnatad by 
CLIENi In wrltlng, 

Job No. !l_9K·OOJ.IJ92 

be llabln for con!equontlal or Indira~! damages, lost proms, los! 
buslmms or opportunity, or lost use ofpropp.rty. 

10, INDEMNII'ICATION: CLIENT and Trlhydro agree to indemnlly 
und hold each othor harmless (lncludlnglnve~ligatlon expense, 
altomoy's fees, oosls and litlgaUon expanses) from any <::lalm, 
loss, Injury, damage, fine, emma of uollon, ('claim'), asserted 
against the lndomnllee by any person or enl;ty (Including, 
wllhout llmltaUon, Trlhydro and CLIENTs employeos) to lho 
extent the clalm Is proximately caused by U\o lndurnnltor's 
Intentional misconduct or the indemnl!o~s portion of fault. 
Attorney's laos and llt!gallon expenses rocoverable under thiG 
paragraph lnclwdo fees and costs Incurred In astlbllshlng a 
party'~ ~ght to lndcmnm~ation. 

11. !:!lllAH.!JOlJS SUBSTANCES· If stale or federally regulated 
hazardous, loxlc or dangarous w~stos as defined by state or 
federal regulations (/mre!n~ltor 'vrostes') am oncountered at 
U1u site, and il these 'wastes' requlm handling, tr.msportallon 
or disposal a\ an of!·slle facility Trihydro wlll assist In Bdvlslng 
tho CUt:NT of the CLIIlNT's options. However. Trihydro will 
not "arrange• (as denned In 42 U.S.C. 9a07) for disposal of, 
ac~epl Utle to. sfgn manlfesls for, or taka control of My wastes. 
CLIENT shall Indemnify and hold Trlhydro harmless from any 
claims, damages, fines and fees, llllgallon or expenses, arising 
out of or In any way related to handling, transportation and 
disposal of any weston in lhtt course of Trlhydro's porfo!lTianoo 
of U1ls Agreement 

12, CLIENT PROyiOE:!2.J.I:!FORMATION; Trlll)fdm Is enfl~ed to 
rely on all Information furnished or to be furnl~hod by CLIENT. 
CLIENT agraes to defend and Indemnify Trlhydro, lis o!llcers, 
agents and employ~es from any Bnd all claims of eny kind 
ari~lng out of or relating to any claims causod by or OOI\lr1bu\ed 
to by any errors or omissions In lnformaUon provided to 
Trihydm. 

13. 

14, SAFt;;T\': 1\ Is the responsibility of the CLIENT to pmvlde and 
maintain a safe working envlrorment for Ita emplayens, 
Trlhydro employees and thai or Trlhydro subcantrnctors, 
agB11ts, tha public Bnd uny othm third patty. l'nhydro shall be 
responsible for the health and safely of II$ employee~; 
Subcontraclor~ shall ba re~panslbto for the health and safety of 
Uwlr own cmployoeB, 

11i. ~: Trihydro shall not assign this Conlract wllltout 
prior wrltton consent of CLIENT, bul may, employ any other 
party It deems neoessory or prop~r for any part of tho work 
required to be performed by Trihydto under tho terms of this 
Contract. 

16, TERMINATION; Either party may terminate this Contract at 
any lime upon seven (7) days p~or written notice to the other. 
In suoh over\!, Trlhydto will be compensated /or s~rvl<:es 
performed lmrsurnfer to the termination dale together With an 
costs arising out of suoh tormlnatlon. 
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20. COLLECTION FE;ES AND §XPENSES: In the even! !his 
Contract ~llould be referred lo an al!orney al law, agent, or 
collection agenpY lor coilccUon, CLIENT agrees to pay such 
reasonable fees T!lhydro may Incur, In the colleo11on of lees lor 
services parlormed and malarial supplied hereunder. 

21. ENTtBF AGFH;EMEMT: The Agreement (and any referenced 
attachments) constitute tile entire agreement between CLIENT 
and Trlhydro and supersoctes all prior or oral or written 
representations or agreements. This Agreerrumt shall not be 
modified except In writing and s1gned by both parties. If ~ny 
provision of 11115 Agreement Is determined by o court 1o bo 
tnvnl!d or unenforeeab!Q, tho rnmalnder of tillS Agreement shall 
remain In fu<! forcu and effect. 

22. .§~.:L.ERAt3161T'L9~ Every part, provlslon, or term of 
the Contract to Provide Sarvlcesl~ savera~lo from every other 
part, provision, Of torm. A find!fl!l that any part or provision Is 
invalkf, void, or unenforceable sh~ll not affect the remaining 
parts and provisions. 

23. RGTE!NTI.Q!:t Trlhydro shall maintain true and correct records 
in connec!lon wllh each material cost and each cost 
reimbursable servloo perlormed and all transactions related 
thereto, end shall retain all such r~cords lor thwe yoars afler 
the end of the calendar yser In wi11ch the last service wa~ 
perfcrme~. Any audit requested by CLIENT shall be at tho 
CLIENT's solo cost an<! expense. TRIKYDRO Is an 
envlronmentally conscience firm that maintains and s\cres Ita 
documents e!Qctron!eatly, ra!lwr than In hard copy. 

24. OWNERSHIP 01-' WORK PRODUCT: Work Produot ~llall not 
Include custamllations or, derivatives of, or enhancements to 
TRIHYDRQ.-ownad or TRI!·IYDRO·provided software, such as 
but not limited to Project Direct, that may 00 provided as an 
applk:at!on ror CLIENT's w.m. The provisions of this Article do 
nat apply to any matorlal, lnclud!ng pre-existing sol!waro, 
previously bekmging to TRIHYORO or lawfully acquired by 
TRIH'lDRO In a manner lm!opendsnt of \his Agreement, wlllch 
arc used by TRIHYDRO In the course of thn Services 
hermmdor, or which may be provided by TRIHYORO lo 
CLIENT and which fij Indicated to be the property of 
TRTHYDRO by copyright notice or othef\\ltsc shnll not bn 
conaldorcd CLit.:NT's Wor~ Product. 

26. EXt:CUTION OF AGR!';.E_M_G!f(: Facsimile/email signatures 
will tm accepted to execute this Agroornenl. 



August 17,2012 

Mr. Tommy Hamm 
Rawlins Area Operations Supervisor 
Colorado Interstate Gas Company, LLC 
P.O. Box 307 
Sinclair, WY 82334 

RE: Pr{)posed Work Scope and Cost Estimate, Leak Detection and Repair Program Monitoring and 
Management, Rr~wlins NGL Plant and Compressor Station, Sinclair, Wyoming 

Dear Mr. Hamm: 

Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) appreciates the opportunity to present this cost and technical proposal to 
provide Colorado Interstate Gas Company, LLC with a leak detection and repair (LDAR) program 
monitoring and management program at their Rawlins NGL Plant and compressor station (Rawlins 
facility). This letter transmits our proposed work scope and cost estimate per our understanding of the 
project during our telephone conversation the week of August 13, 20 !2. 

Relevant Qualifications 
We believe that Trihydro is very wei! positioned to provide this work scope at the Rawlins facility. 
Trihydro is a recognized leader in downstream petroleum refining and upstream oil and natural gas air 
compliance programs. We have been involved with numerous air compliance regulations for the past 17 
years. During our 17 years of air compliance work, we have worked at over 50 petroleum refineries, 60 
chemical and ethanol plants, and 38 natural gas processing plants. Trihydro is also currently providing 
local LDAR mclnitoring and program management at the Sinclair Refinery in Sinclair, Wyoming. 

Our LDAR team is regarded as an industry leader in providing "best of class" monitoring, management, 
and reporting services to our customct·s. Currently, we arc suppotting five petroleum refineries, three 
chemical plants, 38 natural gas processing facilities, and up to 60 ethanol plants with LDAR monitoring 
and program management. 

Project Assumptions 
Pursuant to our recent discussion and concspondcnce, the Rawlins facility is required to have an LDAR 
program in accordance with MACT standard Subpart ln1 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous 
Air Pollutants from Oil and Natural Gas Production Facilities. The Operating Permit 3-2-072, dated 
July 21, 2009 outlines the fugitive emissions monitoring requirements under P63-HH1 through HH5. The 
LDAR program will include routine monthly and quarterly inspections, remonitoring of leaking 
components, quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) metrics, and semiannual reporting. 

1252 Commerce Drive I lHdmle, WY 82070 I phone 307/T~5.7~74 I fa~ 307/745.7129 I WWYI.trlhydro.tom 
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Staffing Plan 
Our staffing plan for this project is to utilize one of our LDAR professionals based in Laramie, Wyoming 
combined with one of our senior LDAR staff familiar with natural gas processing operations. If the 
Rawlins facility selects Trihydro for routine LDAR monitoring and reporting we will dedicate an LDAR 
professional to the Rawlins facility. 

Trihydro Company 
We recognize that our employees arc our gt·eatest asset. Trihydro hns an experienced, diverse staff of 
over 360 professionals, technicians, and support personnel in 15 offices located across the United States. 
The project team that we have slated for the Rawlins facility is an "all-star" LDAR professional team with 
decades ofLDAR compliance and monitoring experience. Trihydro believes that another key aspect of 
developing and maintaining an "inspector proof' LDAR program is hiring and retaining quality 
environmental technicians. As such, we offer ow· staff a competitive salary commensurate with 
experience and a complete benefits package. We take great pride in having a lower employee turnover 
rate than the industry standard for LDAR service providers. 

Quality Assurance I Quality Control (QAfQC) 
Accurate monitoring data are fundamental to any environmental monitoring program. As such, Trihydro 
has an overall commitment to qt.mlity <1nd has developed a number ofQA/QC practices throughout the 
organization. Our LDAR QA/QC practices are highlighted in the QAIQC memorandum included as 
Attachment A of this proposal. l'rihydro has consistently maintained corporate practices to provide our 
clients with accurate and complete information. These practices include a structured data review of all 
LDAR data obtained, a final review process for all reports, and a structured auditing system for specific 
tasks sucb as LDAR monitoring. Monthly performance metrics will be provided to the Rawlins facility, 
which wil! include: status of envimnmental monitoling, repair statistics, results ofQA/QC reviews, 
number of chronically lcakine components, number of components on delay of repair, and number of 
monitoring events. 

Pricing Assumptions 
Based on our recent correspondence, we anticipate that up to 350 components will requlre monitoring at 
the Rawlins facility. In pricing the routine monitoring task of the project, we are assuming the monitoring 
of 350 components on a quarterly basis. In preparing this cost estimate, we have assumed the industry 
standard of monitoring 250 components per day. Thus, we have assumed that the routine monthly 
monitoring task of this project can be completed in approximately one half day or approximately 4 man 
hours per month at a price of$61.00 per hour. We have assumed that the routine qua1ter!y monitoring 
task of this project can be completed in approximately one to two days or approximately 12 man hours 
per quarter at a price of$61.00 per hour. We have included 2 hours for mobilization and demobilization 
from one of our office locations per monthly and quarterly monitoring events. Our estimated cost for 
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each quarterly monitoring event based on these assumptions totals $1 ,675. Our estimated cost for each 
monthly monitoring event based on these assumptions totals $920. 

We have also included n project preparation task which includes drafting a site specific health & safety 
pi an, project coordination, and scheduling. The semiannual project management task lncludes quality 
assurance/quality control (QA/QC) of the monitoring data, completing, and submitting two semiannual 
LDAR reports to the Rawlins facility and the respective reporting agencies. We will also review the 
management of change (MOC) doeumenl'l and add new or delete components as needed. 

In summary, our pricing for the Rawlins fncility LDAR monitoring and pmgram management includes: 

Project preparation and coordination - $1,062 

Monthly and quarterly routine LOAR monitoring- $14,060 

Semiannual Project Management- $1 ,266 

Our total time-and-materials cost estimate for LDAR program monitoring and management totals 
$16,388. Our estimated cost does not include any cost!; associated with tagging or inventory of 
components at the facility. Upon commencement of the project, any additional tagging or inventorying 
requirements will be discussed with Rawlins facility personnel and a plan will be de vel oped to resolve 
any additional needs. 1'rihydro does not surchargEl for overtime work and out"of"pocket expenses will be 
invoiced at cost. Detailed cost worksheets are presented in Attachment B. 

Trihydro has a strong desire to continue to build a business partnership with Colorado Interstate Gas 
Company, LLC's Rawlins facility. As such, we are committed to providing the Rawlins facility a 
superior service at a fair and reasonable price. 

If you have any questions about our qualifications, assumptions, statnng, or pricing please do not hesitate 
to contact us at {307) 745-7474. 

Sincerely, 
Trihydro Corporation 

/{ ' 

b J. (//> c.c, 
afvin Niss 

Vice President 

999-261-002 

Attachments 

~;0/~ 
Project~~~~ LDAR Group Leader 
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memorandum 

To: LDAR Clients 

From: 

cc: 
Trlhydro Corporation 
Air & Process Services 

Date: _!0ay 16, 2011 

Re: LDAR QNQC Program 

--------------------

Introduction 
Trihydro Corporation (Trihydro) has developed a quality assurance quality control (QA/QC) program to 
support our LDAR clientele. The purpose of the program is to provide each of our LDAR clients with 
QA!QC measures that verify emissions monitoring data, recotdkeeping, and data validation. 

Trihydro is committed to producing and delivering quality work products to our clients. Because of our 
commitment to quality, we have developed a number of internal QA/QC practices. These practices 
include a structured internal review of all data used in client documenL<;, an internal peer review process 
for reports and correspondence, and a structured auditing system fm specific tasks including LDAR 
monitoring, 

We stand behind our 27 years in the environmental consulting business with the philosophy that 
successful QA/QC programs require commitment from management, consistent application by field 
technicians, and the regular review and if needed, revisions to both training and QA/QC protocols by our 
project managers. 

Training Programs 
Trihydro provides our LDAR technicians with Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs), Method 21 field 
and classroom training, LDAR database training, and health and safety. We have developed an LDAR 
training program that focuses on both field and classroom exercises. Trihydro's "Fugitive Emissions 
Monitoring Training Program" ls used for training and includes the following exercises: 

Introduction to Fugitive Emissions Monitoring 

Fugitive Emissions Monitoring Regulations 

Fugitive Emission Sources 

Fugitive Emissions Monitoring Programs 

Fugitive Emissions Monitoring tnstrumentation 

1252 Commerce Drive I loramie. WY 82070 I phone 301/745.7474 1 Ia! 307/145.7729 I www.trlhydro.com 
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Method 2! Monitoring 

Health and Sufety 

Trihydro provides mandatory refresher training to employees assigned to LDAR related projects. This 
group of individuals includes monitoring technicians, database users, QA/ QC personnel, and project 
managers responsible for managing personnel, Jeliverables, budgets, and client satisfaction. Training 
records are maintained on our internal database. These records are reviewed on a semi-annual basis to 
make sure Trihydro employees assigned to LDAR related projects are up to date with their certifications 
both in LDAR training and health and safety requirements. 

Trihydro hus implemented a Short Service Employee (SSE) training program for all new field technicians 
and professional staffthatjoin the organization. The SSE program prohibits new employees from 
entering a project or job site without an escort until the necessary training has been completed and the 
individual has satisfactorily passed his I her specific training requirements as detcnnined by the Trihydro 
LDAR Team Leader and Business Unit Manager. 

LDAR QA/ QC Program 
Trihydro's QA/QC program involves the review of monitoring data to identifY abnormal data patterns, the 
number of valves monitored per technician, and the time between monitoring events. These records are 
reviewed for each LDAR client on a daily to monthly basis. The types of reviews that are performed at 
each site include: 

Inspections/per min 

Inspections/per hr 

Consecutive zero readings 

Missed inspections 

Check work orders 

Check out of service components 

Late first attempts and re-lnspections 

Late final repairs and re-inspections 

Number of components on Delay of Repair (DOR) 

Number of DOR components added 
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Number of DOR components deleted 

Average time on DOR 

Maximum time on DOR 

Number of components Diftlcult to Monitor (DTM) 

% DTMS in fb.cility 

Number of Added components 

Number of Deleted componenl~ 

Initial extraordinary attempt been made >SOk DOR 

lias extraordinary attempt been made every 36 months,> !Ok DOR 

Recordkeeping 
Trihydro's QA/QC Coordinator (Lisa Polus) reviews LDAR~relaied records on a regular basis to ensure 
that logs and databases are maintained and updated, An example of the record~ we review at each LDAR 
site includes: 

Daily Calibrations 

Drift asse~~ments 

Mid-day 

End of Day 

Method 21 certifications 

Extension pole re~certifications 

Calibration gas expirations 

Calibration gas certificate of analyses 

Repair history of analyzer 

Internal Auditing 
Internal audits are critical in maintain an inspector proof' LDAR program. Our internal LDAR audits 
focus on monitoring and Method 21 procedures, instrumentation and calibration, leak repairs, and 
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database records. Trihydro will complete an internal field audit on an annual basis for our larger refinery 
clients. Program deficiencies and best practices wi!l be discussed with each client following the annual 
audit. 

Conclusion 
If areas of noncompliance are discovered through either the QA I QC process OJ' the annual audit, we will 
initiate communication with that client to address the issue. We will implement as soon as practicable, 
steps necessa1·y to correct issues of noncompliance, and conduct a "root cause analysis." The results of 
our "root cause analysis" will be presented and discussed with that client. 

LDAR programs that incorporate the QA I QC components described above achieve more consistent 
program results. Thcrcibrc, these types of programs historically have lower emissions, lower leak rates, 
less federal and state scrutiny, find arc overul! more efficient and cost-effective. Thus, the goal of 
Trihydro is to have an "inspector proof'' LDAR program at each and every site. 
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~"H'""' ""'""""'"'•0000i.i,------

LDAR Program 
Facility Name, C!iy, State 

Mont.hly QAQC 
M11y, 201(1 

Ali lnulrloo WU/o vorlfl<>d ond loU Wrlh1n •oooplat>la ONQC P"<amoloro: No urwmalloo w<>ra k!onllf!Od 

All m"lnco w,o vorir.u<l•n<lfa~wilhirl nccopleblo QNQC p•1'11111olars: No onomo!10o ""'a ldenfifoad. 

lllfmefok.• wore vorifiod rmd loll willllo acoop!abinONOC pcromolors: No 011omall,. woro kJonliliod. 

All molrlc• were vorl!led Md lo~ wllhln ~coopleble QNOC p!!tamelors: No o!IO!nallos wero ld!ll1!~1od. 

All melricowom vorir.od ond f&llwllhirl •cooptoblo ONQC pmam&t"'s: No anomol<>& ""'" IOOiliili<><l 

Alllll&lrics woro vot'lied Md loll within 'ICW,:Ioblo QNOC para motors: No """'""~"' ""'" k!llnlrfiod 
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TABLE M. COST F.S'TIMATE, LDAR PROGRAM MONt 'TORINO AND MANAGF.MENT 
COLORADO INtERSTATE GAS COMPANY, INC., RAWLINS NGL PLANT AND COMPRESSOR STATION, SINCLAIR, WYOMING 

I II 
Ill 

$186 0 
-Project mana gamont Wl5 0 
-Project preparation and P&IO mvlt.'l'llf needed Level2 $136 1 
·Coordination or on-site acUviUes ~nd scheduling Lave[ 3 $122 0 
- Prepamtloo ol slle-speclnc health and oafety pl~n lavel4 $97 " Level 5 '"' 0 

l.evot ~Tech '"' 2 
EKpens_o. ___ 
t:qulpment cost+ 10% 0 
Olfioo 2.B% of Labor 1 
Travel Cost II 
Per Diem 5145 0 
Vehlcl<l $150 0 

Aotlvl!:( 1_Subtolal 
2 Monthly Pump Inspections Personnel 

Pr1nclp~l $186 0 
- Mobe to Rawlins NGI. Plant Level1 ~185 0 
-lnspeot pumps and any remC>nltors of prior leakers l.evol2 ~138 1 
-Coordinate rupatr acllvlllcs with malnlenance por~onnol Lovol3 $122 ' -Eight monthly Inspections per year Lavol4 '"' 0 

Levol5 '"' 0 
Level J Tech '" " Equlpmo~t Fee: Ell~OllSU~ 

- FID $100/daY F.:qulpment cost+ 10% 
-Palm datatoggnr $40/day Office 2.5% ot L~bor 1 
• Databa~e leO $1 00/monm Travel Cost 0 
·Wireless a!rcard $10 Per Diem $146 ' Vehicle $150 1 

$186 0 
- Mobe to Rawlill!l NGL Plant $166 0 
·Assume lhe monllorlng ol approx. 350 components Level 2 $138 1 
-Identify leaking components $122 0 
- Coordlnata ropalr actlvllles with rmJlntenenoe perscnnel '"' 1 
·Four quarterly Inspections par year $07 0 

'" '" Equipment Fee: 
-FlO $100/daY Coot+ 10% ' -Palm dataiOggur $40/day 

' 
2.6% of Labor ' - Gallbmtion Gases $60 Travel Coal 0 

- Dalabaso roo $100/month Per Diem $145 1 
Vehl~e ~150 1 

Personnel 
Principal $186 0 

- LJpdatlng and managing d~tabase Levell $165 1 
- Prepsratlon of two ~omlannual reports Lovr:l z $138 0 
·Submittal of semla~nual rf!port~ to facility Level3 $122 0 
-Quality assur~nccJquality control of monllerlrm data Level4 $9? 4 

Level5 '"' 0 
Level4 Tech '" ' Clerical '" 1 
Exeenae~ 
Equipment cost+ 10% 0 
Offico 2.5% or Labor 1 
Travol Cost ' Per Diem $141l 0 
Vohlclo "" 0 

$0 

" $138 
$0 

$776 

" $122 

" ''" $0 

" $0 
31.002 

$0 
$0 

'"' " " " $466 

$275 

"' " 
$0 
$0 

'"' $0 

"' $0 
se7s 

S209 

"" $0 
$145 
$160 

51 675 

$0 

'"' ,, 
$0 

$3M 
$0 

$102 

'" 

$1,052 
$920 

$1.575 
5633 

$16388 

1 ol1 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached COMBINED COMPLAINT AND 
CONSENT AGREEMENT in the matter of COLORADO INTERSTATE GAS COMPANY, 
L.L.C.; DOCKET NO.: CAA-08-2013-0016 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on 
M•y I , 2014. 

Further, the undersigned certifies that, on the same date, a true and correct copy of the document 
was sent by internal EPA mail to: 

Elyana R. Sutin, Regional Judicial Officer 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street, Mail Code 8RC 
Denver, CO 80202 

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the document was sent by first 
class U.S. Mail on M""( I , 2014, to: 

Counsel for Respondent: 

Daniel Schnee, Senior Counsel 
Legal Department- El Paso Corporation/Kinder Morgan 
Two North Nevada A venue 
Colorado Springs, CO 80903 

Date May 11 :lo [q 
I David Rochlin, Counsel for Complainant 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached COMBINED COMPLAINT, 
CONSENT AGREEMENT in the matter COLORADO INTERSTATE GAS COMPANY; 
DOCKET NO.: CAA-08-2013-0016 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on May I, 
2014; the FINAL ORDER was tiled on May 7, 2014. 

Further, the undersigned cettifies that a true and conect copy of the documents were delivered 
to, David Rochlin, Senior Enforcement Attorney, U.S. EPA- Region 8, 1595 Wynkoop Street, 
Denver, CO 80202-1129. True and conect copies of the aforementioned documents were sent 
and placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt and emailed on May 7, 2014. 

Counsel for Respondent: 

May 7, 2014 

Daniel Schnee, Senior Counsel 
Legal Department-EI Paso Corporation/Kinder Morgan 
Two North Nevada Avenue 
Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
Daniel.schnee@kindermorgan.com 

\. .. luza..~ 
Tina Artemis 
Paralegal/Regional Hearing Clerk 
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